
Selectboard Informational Meeting Minutes 

October 29, 2024 

Present: Doon Hinderyckx (absent), Frank Severy, Pat Harvey 

Guests: Orca Media, Kristen LaPell, Julie Smith, Nancy Woolley, Amy Wildt, Robert Meagher, Mickaela 

Richardson, Chad Richardson, Addison Richardson,  Jon & Karen Bindrum, Dean Mendell, Burma 

Cassidy-Wisner, Ed Wisner, Melinda Lary, Deb & Bill Matthews, Larry Straus, Mary Beth Deller, Joe 

Schenkman, Hannah Kinsley, Ray Harvey, Kathryn Schenkman, Vic Ribaudo, Sue Ribaudo, Dick 

Robson, Tony & Brenda Goupee, Greg White, Sarah Martire, Asia Labejsza-Kennett, Rob & Char 

Gardner, Walter Golub, Eric & Ginny Bowman, Caiden & Gabby Ostrow, Dawn Ostro, Mike McIntyre, 

Nancy Sanz, Manzanita Sanz,  

Zoom Guests: Troy LaPell, Kevin & Paula Dougherty, Orca Media, Justin Stover, Becky Donnet 

Pat called the Selectboard Informational meeting to order at 7:00pm. 

Pat acted as the moderator for the meeting. She indicated this is the final of four informational meetings 

that were scheduled prior to the vote on November 5th.  The vote can be found on the back of the ballot.  

She turned the meeting over to Vic Ribaudo. He is the co-chair of the Repurposing Committee along with 

Kathryn Schenkman. Vic started the discussion with slides. He shared the production from some of the 

elementary students on their view and support for the repurposing of the high school building, who 

worked under the guidance of Andrew Fersch’s sixth grade class. Vic shared the agenda for the evening’s 

presentation.  

Kathryn shared the history of the project. The feasibility study concluded in July 2022 by Fairweather 

Consultants with GBA Architects. The 3.5 million budget for the upgrades for the building which 

includes a new roof, new windows and doors, new HVAC system, electrical system as well as other 

things highlighted in the Black River Study. That amount was submitted to the Senator Sanders 

Congressional Directed Spending Grant and based on that 2.3 million was awarded. In 2024, however the 

budget was revised based on increased costs and the whole project came in around 5 million dollars. The 

committee went back to Greg Gossin and asked to scale the project closer to the 2.3 million. That was 

presented on September 4th. She said we are moving forward with the scaled back amount focusing on the 

classroom side of the building to make the project tenant ready as soon as possible to bring in revenue to 

help with sustainability. The rest of the building will be done in Phase 2 of the project. The fundraising is 

based on 3.5 million. The congressional grant has a match requirement that is through the USDA facilities 

account and that match is approximately $776,000. There was a community donation in the amount of 

$280,000. They have found that their preconstruction costs can be used towards that match. Putting those 

two figures together leaves a remaining $408,595 match amount. They are also prepared to submit a 

CDBG grant. They were asked to submit a pre-application in January with the final application due in 

April in the amount of 1 million. She said there are tenants who have signed MOU (memorandums of 

understanding) and the good news is the School wanted to be an anchor tenant in the West Wing of the 

building so they can expand their arts curriculum. Kathryn said the construction is raised money and none 

will be asked by the town.  

Dick Robson spoke on behalf of the consulting architect who couldn’t attend. He shared the plan for the 

use of the school. He said the plan for Phase 2 included the auditorium side for maker space, computer 

space and community room with community kitchen. Phase 1 would include the classroom side of the 

school for rental spaces, which include childcare, various health practitioners, education, etc. This side 

would bring in the rental income. The conceptional budget is on the architect’s concept for Phase 1. The 



construction division would include thermal and moisture, a new roof, new insulation on the interior, new 

exterior doors and windows. The largest cost would be for the mechanical plumbing, including all new 

HVAC system for heat, ac and ventilation. Those costs have increased tremendously in the past three 

years. The electrical needs to be upgraded. The entrance would be upgraded, and these upgrades would 

allow for no fossil fuels. They are now amidst a new architect selection process. They have submitted an 

RFP (request for proposal). Friday there was a walk through with potential bidders. After the vote next 

week, if the vote is a yes, then on the 15th the selectboard can decide on who to choose for the bid award.  

Vic spoke about the financial part of the project. He asked everyone to silently say to themselves, these 

numbers will change. The estimate is based on numbers submitted without an architect’s input. He said 

they were unsure of what the electric cost would be as well as the fuel and how the building can be 

economized with insulation. This will have a major impact on the operation costs of the building. He said 

they are also in the process of recruiting tenants for the building. He said as more information is generated 

these numbers could be way off. To give an idea that the generated income from rental spaces would 

offset the operational costs over time. He felt that perhaps in year 3 or more could be when costs would 

be offset. He will know more once the architect selected and engineering analysis, there would be a better 

handle on these proposed operational costs. He said there would be community support by the time the 

town meeting came around in March. He also wanted to point out that the annual costs of demolition are 

on repayment. That was proposed at $94,000 every year for 30-year bond. He made another point that the 

concept of taxpayer would be paying less in school taxes because of not being supported by the school. If 

the town property tax goes up by $74,000 for operational costs, then that would mean the school support 

for that would go down by $34,000. There are some offsets.  

Valley Hub Inc is the nonprofit tax-exempt organization formed to develop the building and take as much 

burden off of the town staff and selectboard as possible. They potentially could take ownership in 5 years. 

They are under requirement of the Sanders grant funding that the town would need to retain ownership for 

5-years before it could be transferred to another non-profit. There has been discussion with the 

selectboard about a management agreement over the next five years. If the vote is positive there will be 

more discussion about a formal agreement.  

Vic gave a recap about the PCB discussion from the last meeting. Vic said the school was tested in 2022 

for PCBs in building material samples. They found 1 milligram per kilogram. That’s one part per million 

in paint and molding and adhesive. More material sampling needs to be done this winter as well as air 

quality sampling to suffice Act 74 to establish indoor air quality for schools. If the levels are not within 

the threshold, then mitigation steps need to be taken. The hope was that the testing would be started in 

October and learned that it will not begin until January. This puts the results out until May. Two Rivers is 

paying for the testing.  

Vic addressed the Risk and mitigation. He said there is a 20% contingency in the budget for risk and 

mitigation. He said this is not a risk-free endeavor. He said one insufficient capital funding to complete 

Phase 1. What if we don’t get enough money and the building needs to be occupied and minimally heated 

longer than planned. He said we could delay occupancy until sufficient funds are committed. West Wing 

in theory could proceed with just clean up and not renovation which would offset some generating 

income. They could seek additional town support for operational costs. What if there are insufficient 

tenants to cover operational costs. He said one could be to reduce capital reserve, reducing expenses 

wherever its feasible, increasing fundraising, increasing town subsidy requests, consider pausing the 

project or shutting it all down. The range of possibilities is wide. If PCB contamination is a risk, seeking 

to get current analysis of what the status of PCB is underway, the work that is done suggests that the 

concentration is low but is not definitive, so more work needs to be done. If the costs turn out to be 

millions and millions of dollars, like Burlington High School, it will be a different story. If we go the 



demolition route, the proposal and analysis done is $94,000/ year for 30 years and we are locked in. The 

other option is to abandon it. This created a derelict building in the middle of town and would need to be 

torn down anyway in the future. Frank asked if they ever looked at lowering the scope of this project. 

Like perhaps taking down part of the building and not using all 35,000 square feet as a committee. Dick 

said it would be possible to demolish part of the building because of the two lobbies. He said this would 

create a situation where you would put a lot of money in demolition on one part of the building and not 

having the funds to renovate the other. Their decision was to renovate the classroom wing so there could 

be rental income, while renovating the second phase after so the operational costs could be sustained by 

rental income. Frank said the operational costs need to include the single audit costs and to add an 

additional cost of $10,000 a year. He also said if the money is rented back to the school that also comes 

out of our taxes anyway. He said it’s not considered income since it’s through taxes. Vic said the kids are 

the ones to benefit from that and Frank agreed.  

Vic said the current project schedule is dependent on the vote on Tuesday. Project architect selection is in 

November. Project manager to be selected in December. Town meeting in March will be point of decision 

around whether to support the operational costs of the building. Design to be at 80 % by March for bid 

ready documents. April will be the deadline for submitting the grant application for 1 million dollars. 

May will be when the PCB findings report will be complete. The finding perhaps sooner but the 

mitigation plan will be disclosed. In June, the decision of the CDBG grant. The rest of the schedule 

resumes awaiting the results of the grant. The other funding will also be in place by June. In July, 

construction would begin.  

Kathryn spoke about the July 1 would start the town obligation, because until then the school would 

continue to pay for the operational costs. Rob Gardner asked if the selectboard or Vic could address the 

town’s financial capability to take on this project. He said regarding the projected costs, could somebody 

speak to the town to see if we are able to handle these costs. Pat explained the estimated costs for the 

town’s responsibilities to support the building. In the first year of renovation, that would be the most 

expensive year while we are in the first year of renovation. Once the building improves efficiency with 

solar and geothermal it would cost less to support the building. The following year it drops in half. Once 

we have tenants then it starts to sustain itself. We have no idea what inflation will do in the future years. 

The town would need to look to the taxpayers with an increase in budget in the first year with a cost of 

$74,000 in addition to what the town budget would be. This would have to be discussed at the Town 

Meeting. She said that in her opinion, at the end of the 5-year period and the project can sustain itself and 

Valley Hub Inc is ready to acquire the building, it would recoup those earlier costs back to the taxpayers. 

Vic said it’s a moving target. Really hard to know the costs. It could go up, could go down. The thought is 

over time the costs would be net zero.  

Amy Wildt made a comment about the $74,000 added to taxes. She said to remember that it would reduce 

the school tax by $34,000.  

Char Gardner asked if the next time numbers are projected to include the cost breakdown for the 

demolition to see why it costs that much, what the interest costs are and why over 30 years. Amy said that 

referring to the flyer that was mailed out the costs for demolition is from a 30-year bond with 4.5 % to 

make it into green grass to mow. Vic said the costs for demolition came from the school and then was 

passed along to the budget committee who reached out to the Vermont Bond Bank for the figures 

provided. $250,000 for asbestos. Frank shared, to clarify things, $100,000 raised by taxes is 10 cents on 

the tax rate roughly, so if you take that to calculate on your $200,00 appraised value of your home that 

roughly increased your taxes by $200. Vic wanted to make clear this is a one-time yearly ask. 

Asia commented in support of the project and the positive impact on her family and the community.  



Mike McIntyre made a comment not in support of this project and how the numbers are not firm. He said 

this will bring a load on the taxpayers. He is very concerned about the costs and risk.  

Walter Golub commented in support of the project. He said with the little bit the taxes go up you will 

have something. $90,000 every year for demolition doesn’t sound reasonable.  

Dan McKinley asked what a no vote means. He said it looks to him like an investment and a risk he is 

willing to take to support the project as an investment at least. He also asked if Stockbridge has any input 

for the vote. Amy responded that if a no vote were to happen the school would be continued to be owned 

by RSUD. Currently, the school budget was voted to include the operational costs for this year such as 

heat. She said the school does not have money to do any renovations and barely enough to pay for the 

operational heat for the school. Going forward she said the grant money goes away. 

Vic said that the town will not pay the construction costs for the building. That will all be covered by 

grant monies. The operational costs would be paid by the town. If there is a no vote, the 2.3 million grants 

would go away. The Senator Sanders money is only for the construction costs to complete the project.  

Amy wanted to make clear that the Supervisory School district does not own the school. Rochester 

Stockbridge Unified School District owns the building. She said the school district would have to come to 

the Rochester Stockbridge taxpayer for a bond vote.  

Mike McIntyre asked what a no vote would mean. Amy said she couldn’t speak on behalf of the whole 

board but to her understanding, the doors would close, the heat would turn off, the concrete would crack, 

and pipes would burst. She said it would look like Weyerhaeuser. She said a vacant building next to a 

school would be a bad thing. Insurance costs for an abandoned building would be higher. She said the 

school district would have to include the costs in the school budget. 

Rob Gardner has been very conflicted with this project. He said if we don’t vote yes for the vote then we 

don’t have control of the building. Amy said a yes vote would give Rochester 100% decided power of 

what to do with the building. She said this plan is a good plan. It brings the building into a more 

environmentally sustainable future.  

Dan asked what the survey about the adult and daycare center and asked what the likelihood of those 

services is coming in and paying rent. Kathryn spoke to that and sent out a survey and got a high 

percentage of returns. She said there is significant interest in using this building. She spoke about 

Maureen Young, who is pursuing a satellite location for a child services center. She teaches at VTC and is 

well connected to putting together these services. She is working on Grants and can go after more if the 

vote is positive.  

Mike McIntyre asked if a yes vote and the PCB comes back with high numbers, who pays for that. Vic 

said we need to determine the numbers and then find money for mitigation. Vic said that would come 

from other sources than the taxpayers.  

Greg White made a comment that $70,000 doesn’t sound like a lot, 7 cents on the tax rate, but we have a 

lot of challenges in front of us now within the budget committee. Rob asked what kind of condition the 

town in front of us and I is just wanting to say we have several challenges. He asked if it is a yes vote, 

describe the management agreement and how future agreements will be made moving forward. Vic said 

it’s in discussion and no decisions have been made yet. There would be a contract between Valley Hub 

Inc and the town to manage the building in the town’s best interest. They would take responsibility to 

keep the building in good condition, handle tenant issues including leases, complaints and everything else 

that goes along with office buildings. Greg asked about decision points and if the selectboard would be 

involved at each point as you move forward with the project. Vic said we definitely want to work in the 

best interest of the selectboard. The selectboard can be involved as much as they want to. Greg asked also 



if a yes vote to move forward with the project or just to buy the school. Frank said it’s just a vote to buy 

the school. He said there will be another vote on what we do with it later and not sure what that is going 

to be or what the timeline is going to be. There should be some options that come out at that time and 

what the valley wants to do.  

Char Gardner asked how that ties in with the timeline that is up there with the architects starting their 

work and that sort of thing right away.  

Vic said that is provisional. He said we won’t know enough about the numbers and timeline until we get 

into architectural design, that takes commitment doing something. Fortunately, we have a donor who is 

willing to make that happen before using grant funds. More information and ideas that surface along the 

way then let’s look at it.  

Rob said he doesn’t like the plan, but he doesn’t want to see someone else own the building. He said what 

Frank is suggesting is that a yes vote to buy the building. He didn’t understand what the follow through is 

or means. He said it makes him uncomfortable if architects are hired and moved in motion without 

knowing the plan. He said it makes sense to him to buy the building, get as much money as possible to fix 

it and then try to evolve it into a plan that is more likely to pay off. Is there a plan for the intermediate 

plan. Kathryn said there hasn’t been mention of another plan.  

Rob Meagher asked if Franks speaks for the whole board. Pat said he does not. She wanted to wait to hear 

what everyone had to say before she spoke how she felt. Dan said he is confused now what a yes vote 

means. He said if we do vote yes to purchase the building for $1 and then we are going to move forward, 

does a yes vote include taking money that we have and the committee has worked hard to get 

improvements to the building, then we have discussion with Frank about what to do with the improved 

building. Franks said it was put out as a yes vote to buy the building and then we can vote to decide to 

move on with the plan or take the building down. Pat said the grant money is coming as a community 

center. She said with a yes vote the money would need to be spent for the community center for 

Rochester. She said this is the plan for the community center. If it comes with a different plan, then yes 

but it has to stay within a community center. It’s a fluent situation. She said she has been involved with 

the project since 2019 with Vic and Kathryn with monthly meetings. She said once an architect is 

involved and the plan hits roadblocks it could change yet again. She anticipates the town meeting will 

have a lot of discussion. She said at some point we had to bring it to a vote to get over this hurdle. She 

spoke about her support for the project. She gave a speech at the last meeting explaining the history and 

shared again tonight of her family and their families all living here. She said this is a good viable 

community here. She wants to see it grow and be viable. She said in the 1970 when this building, the high 

school was a crazy idea to build one of the best high schools in the state of Vermont. She said it happened 

anyway. In the 1980’s there was a dilapidated old inn on the park known as the Eagles Nest that closed 

down and the idea of turning it into an assisted living facility. How could you turn that building into 

something for people to live. She said people rallied around it and the concept happened. In the 1990’s, 

they looked at Pierce Hall and said what can we do with that building. A dream happened and it became a 

fine community facility with a fitness center. In the 2000’s someone named Tucky Cruikshank came into 

a selectboard meeting and said he wanted to hook up internet into every home and EC Fiber was born. It 

happened. Then looking at the high school building coming full circle, she said we can we make it 

happen. Pat supports the project and feels it can happen. She feels it’s worth walking down the path. 

Dan spoke about the experience he has working with federal grants and helping landowners improve their 

land, he said you would do the improvements and then had to maintain the improvements for 5,10 years. 

He asked about the grant money, once we do this what are the limitations or maintenance with the grant 

we would need to know about. Vic responded with we would have to retain ownership for 5 years. If we 



sold the building after five years to a profit company, the town would have to pay back the 3.2-million-

dollar grant. Kathryn felt there needed to be clarification on that. She said selling to a nonprofit would not 

be a concern.  

Nancy Woolley asked if a yes vote would release Stockbridge from any further involvement with this 

building starting in July 2025. 

Rob wanted to clarify, if we vote yes or no are we voting yes or no to buy the building and then there is 

room for what we want to do or are we voting yes, and it will be this project. He felt like the board 

members weren’t in sync. 

Pat said the people asked what we were going to do with the building, so they could determine whether 

they wanted to vote yes or no. This is the concept we are proposing at this date and time. Rob asked Pat to 

answer his question which is are we going to vote on this plan, this is the plan we are standing by or are 

we voting on yes or no. Pat said we are voting on whether we are acquiring the building or not. What we 

determine in the future about future votes and what to do with the building would be the next time we 

have a discussion at Town Meeting. She said if we vote yes, we don’t get the building until July 1, 2025. 

He said he doesn’t like this plan and the consultant who made the plan didn’t like the plan. He said there 

is a lot of risk to this plan. He asked if there is going to be a period of time. He said it needs more work. 

Pat said she anticipates there is more to come. Rob asked if there would be new people or would it be the 

board of the new entity. Pat said that the nonprofit they formed would be it. Valley Hub Inc is the new 

entity that will govern the project. Vic said it would consist of himself, Kathryn Schenkman, Walter Glub, 

Sarah Martire, Andrew Fersch, and Robert Meagher. They are looking for more businesspeople to join.  

Pat moved to adjourn.  

Meeting adjourned at 8:33pm 

Respectfully submitted, 

Julie Smith 


